
II. Conclusions of Law  

1. An initial seizure by local police officers is valid and such seizure 

may be adopted by the Revenue Service and the property proceeded against by 

forfeiture. (United States v. One Studebaker Seven Passenger Sedan, 4 P.2d 534 

(9th Cir. 1925); Taylor. et al v. United States, 44 U.S. 197 (1845); United 

States v. One Ford Coupe, 272 U.S. 321, 325 (1926); Harman v. United States, 

199 P;2d 34 (4th Cir. 1952)). 

2.. Where the government publishes notice of seizure in accordance with 

Section 7325(2), Title 26, United States Code, and claimant files claim and 

bond for costs in accordance with Section 7325(3), Title 26, United States 

Code, and where United States Attorney for judicial district of seizure files 

libel of information against the seized property, the United States District 

Court for the district of seizure obtains jurisdiction over the seized property 

for forfeiture proceedings in accordance with law. (26 U.S.C. 7323, 7325) 

3. A United States Marshal is making a judicial seizure of property, under 

a monition of the District Court, may Leave the property deposited with some other 

governmental agency for safe storage, answerable to the orders of the Court. 

(Averill v. Smith, 84 U.S. 82, 94 (1872); Comptroller General Opn. A-5619, 

Jan. 8, 1925 (4 Comp. Gen. 594).) 

4. The United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, 

Dallas Division, has jurisdiction over forfeiture proceedings against the respondent 

rifle and revolver. (26 U.S.C. 7323) 

5. A person might use a name other than that given him at birth and may 

adopt such name as his own, but more than a limited use of the name is necessary 

to show that such person has adopted the name as his own. A person may not use 

a fictitious name to fraudulently conceal his true identity and later maintain 

that his limited use of the assumed name made such his adopted name and there-

fore not fictitious as to him. Transcontinental Insurance Company of New York  

v.  dinning,  135 F. 2d 479 (6th Cir. 1943). 

6. Section 903(d) of Title 15, United States Code, and Section 177.51 of 

Title 26, Code of Federal Regulations, in requiring licensed dealers in firearms 

to maintain complete and adequate records of the disposition of firearms, and 

particularly requiring such records to show and include the name and address of 

the person to whom each firearm is sold, require that the records show the true 

name of the purchaser and the showing of a fictitious name of such purchaser 
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is contrary to the provisions of such Lew and regulations. ( tensley v. United  

States 171 F. Zd 78 (9th Cir. 1948)). 

7. The showing of a fictitious name of the purchaser on records required 

to be kept by licensed dealers in firearms is a violation of provisions of 

Chapter 18, Title 15, United States Code, and of rules and regulations promulgated 

thereunder, and the firearm which is the subject of the entry in the records 

is involved in a violation of the provisions of such chapter and regulations 

promulgated thereunder and is therefore subject to forfeiture. (15 U.S.C. 

903(d), 905(a), 905(b). Thacher's Distilled Spirits, 103 U.S. 679 (1880)). 

8. Lee Harvey Oswald violated Sections 903(d) and 905(a), Title 15, 

United States Code, by causing the failure of the licensed firearms dealers 

to keep accurate records of the dispositions of firearms even though Lee Harvey 

Oswald was not present when the fictitious name was entered on the required 

records, and was not the person required to keep the records, and even though 

the dealers may have been innocent of any wrongdoing. (18 U.S.C. 2; Hyde v. 

United States,  225 U.S. 347, 362 (1912); Moses v. United States,  297 P.2d 621, 

626 (8th Cir. 1961); Meredith v. United States,  238 F. 2d 535 (4th Cir. 1956); 

Lando. v. United States,  240 Y. Zd 1 (5th Cir. 1957); United States v. Giles, 

300 U.S. 41 (1937); Walker v. United States,  192 F. 2d 47 (10th Cir. 1951).) 

9. Internal Revenue forfeitures are in rem proceedings. It is the 

thing which has offended and the guilt or innocence of a claimant to such 

property is not a factor in determining whether or not such property became 

forfeited. (Rule 10 of Admiralty Rules, 28 U.S.C., Section 7323(a), Title 26, 

United States Code; Lilienthal's Tobacco v. United States,  97 U.S. 237, 261 (1877); 

United States v. One 1958 Pontiac Coupe,  298 F. 2d 421 (7th Cir. 1962); J. W.  

Goldsmith. Jr.-Grant Co. v. United States,  254 U.S. 505, 65 L.U. 376 (1921).) 

10. Forfeitures under the Federal Firearms Act (15 U.S.C. 901, et seq.) 

follow Internal Revenue procedures. After forfeiture the jurisdiction of the 

Court is limited to ordering disposition in accordance with Section 5862(b), 

Title 26, United States Code. Power eitho Court to grant remission of forfeiture 

is limited to Internal Revenue liquor cases, and jurisdiction to grant remission 

of forfeiture in this case would be only with the administrative agency 

(13 U.S.C. 905(b); 26 U.S.C. 5862(b); 18 U.S.C. 3617; United States v. One  

1958 Pontiac Coupe,  298 Y. 2d 421 (7th Cir. 1962); United States v. One 1953  

Oldsmobile Sedan,  132 F. Supp. 14 (W.D. Ark. 1955).) 
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11. Forfeiture of property under Internal Revenue procedures occurs at 

the'time such property became►  involved in a violation of law and the right 

to the property vests in the United States. Formal declaration of forfeiture 

made at some later time relates back to the moment of involvement in the 

violation and avoids all intervening owners even though they may be innocent 

purchasers. (United States v. Stowell, 133 U.S. 1 (1890).) 

Respectfully submitted, 

IELVIti M. DIGS 
United States Attorney 

Bye 	  
B. H. Timmins, Jr. 
Assistant United States Attorney 

Of Counsel 
James F. Goulding 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
Internal Revenue Service 
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Lawrence M. Henry, United 
States Attorney for the Dis-
trict of Colorado, and 
Fred W. Drocala, Attorney for 
the Department 'of Juatics, 
Washingtont . D.  C.  

For the Defendant: 

FEB 24 1956 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORADO - 	--("1;":■\ 

<---\ c
.   

\
\
,, 

- 
.

-
)

JOHN J. KING, 	 ) 	
,
tr...- 	\.is 

TRANSCRIP OZ,  

COURT'S RULING  

Coartroom "D" 
U. S. Courthouse 
Denver, Colorado 
October 4, 1963 

WHEREUPON, the above-entitled cause came on for 

hearing at the hour of 9:33 a.m. o'clock, on the 4th day of 

October, 1965, before the Honorable WILLIAM E. DOYLE, Judge, 

presiding. 

Appearances: 

For the Plaintiff: 	James S. Holmberg, Attorney 
at Law, Denver, Colorado, and 
William C. Garrett, Attorney 
at Law, Dallas, Texas, of 
counsel 

CIVIL ACTION NO, 9168 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

VS. 	 ) 

) 
NICHOLAS deB. KATZENBACK, ) 
Attorney General of the 	) 
United States, 	 ) 

) 
Defendant. ) 
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THE COURT: If the seizure proceedings are yell 

this Court is ousted of jurisdiction, because it does not have 

before it the very subject matter which would be necessary in 

order to carry out its decree. 

To be sure, this is an action that depends on 

personal jurisdiction, but it also requires the presence of 

the property in order to be able -- for the Court to be able 

carry out its decree, because they are claiming a right to hav 

a 	not damages, not compensation; the plaintiff is claiming 

the right to have the specific property on the basis that he 

is the owner. And he is demanding in his prayer for relief 

that the defendant be ordered to deliver this specific item of 

property. 

Consequently, if the property is outside this 

District, and is in the custody of the law in Dallas, Texas, 

this Court lacks power to enter such a decree, and, thus, la 

jurisdiction over the subject matter. And this is, as I view 

it, essential. 

It would appear that the Government maintains 

that the exclusive jurisdiction is the district of seizure. 

And I am not going to prejudge that. I think it is a question 

that should properly be determined by the Court that has issue 

the preliminary order of seizure. And it seems to me that it 

would not be appropriate for me to pass on the very same ques-

tion that that Court is going to have to pass on when that 
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Court's jurisdiction is questioned when the validity of the 

seizure is brought into issue. And it seems to me that this 

is a number one step in the disposition of this case. 

So, therefore, the proceedings here will not be 

dismissed, but, at the same time, they will be suspended, and 

this file will be closed, until such time as the proceedings 

in Texas in Dallas - before Judge Estes have been completed. 

The file can be reopened, and will be, upon the 

motion of plaintiff shoving good cause, which would be that 

the seizure, as ordered, has not been made absolute; that the 

Court has deferred, or for other reasons has declined juris-

diction of the case. 

So, if you will prepare an order I will sign it. 

MR. DROGULA: Your Honor, may the defendant hav 

leave to renew its motion to dismiss if Judge Estes rules that 

he has jurisdiction and accepts the case? 

THE COURT: You can make any motion you like at 

any time, of course. 

MR. DROGULA: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: But, I don't think you need any 

specific reservation on that. 

Very well. 

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings were concluded) 

* * * * * 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OP ItE UNITED STATES 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OP TEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISION 

=TED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Libelant,  

V. 

O 6.5 mm. IIIMUJITIER-CARCANO 
MILITARY RIFLE, MODEL 91-36, 
SERIAL NO C2766 , WITH APPURTENANCES, 
AND aNT .38 SPECIAL S&W VICTORY MERL 
REVOLVER, SERIAL NO. V510210, WITH 
APPURTENALKES, 

Respondents. 

CIVIL NO. 3-1171 

  

GOVERMENT'S BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF 
FORFEITURE 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT C THE UNITED STATES 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT (BF TEXAS 

DALLAS DIVISION 

UNITED STATES CF AMERICA, 	 ) 
) 

Libelant, 	 ) 
) 

v. 	 ) 
) 

ONE 6.5 mm. MANNLICHER-CARCANO 	 ) 
MILITARY RIFLE, MCCEL 9138, 	 ) 
SERIAL NO. C2766, WITH APPURTENANCES, 	) 
AND ONE .38 SPECIAL Sal VICTCRY MODEL 	) 
REVOLVER, SERIAL NO. V510210, WITH 	) 
APPURTENANCES, 	 ) 

) 
Respondents. 	 ) 
	 ) 

CIVIL NO. 3-1171 

GOVERMENT'S BRIEF ZU SUPPORT OF FORFEITURE  

The firearms involved in this forfeiture action are the rifle used on 

November 22, 1963, in the assassination of President John F. Kennedy and the 

revolver used on November 22, 1963, to kill Patrolman J. D. Tippit of the 

Dallas Police Department. These firearms were purchased and acquired by 

Lee Harvey Oswald from firearms dealers in Chicago, Illinois, and Los Angeles, 

California, who were licensed under the provisions of the Federal Firearms Act 

(15 U.S.C. 903), In purchasing the rifle from the licensed firearms dealer 

in Chicago, Lee Harvey Oeweld used the name A. Eiden, and in purchasing the 

revolver from the licensed firearms dealer in Los Angeles, California, Lee 

Harvey Oswald used t1 name A. J. Hidell. The firearms were shipped by the 

firearms dealers to the named person, "A. Udell" or "A. J. Hidell," as shown, 

at P. O. Box 2915, Dallas, Texas. Lee Harvey Oswald, as Lee H. Oswald, was the 

named subscriber to P. O. Box 2915, Dallas, Texas. 

The Government asserts that the rifle, with appurtenances, and the revolver, 

with appurtenances, became forfeited to the United States under the provisions 

of Section 905(b), Title 15, United States Code, because they were involved in 

violations of provisions of Chapter 18 of Title 15, United States Code, that is, 

of the Federal Firearms Act. The violations of this Act were the showing of 

the names "A. Udell" and "A. J. Hidell" on the firearms dealers' required 

records as the purchaser '2.,1 these twl firearms, when in truth and in fact 



these firearms wore not sold to and disposed of to "A. 'Udell" or "A. J. Elden" 

but to Lee Harvey Oswald. 

I. JURISDICTION OP TEO COURT ovea TEE RES AND OF THESE 
FCEFEITURE MOIMUMUMS 

(a) E : lngxecutiSei.veureandUatureofProceed'a. 

The claimant asks for dismissal of the libel on the grounds that the 

Denver Action (John J. Kies v. Nicholas deB. Natzenbach Attornev General of 

the United State,, United States District Court for the District of Colorado, 

Civil Action No. 9168) was instituted long prior to the institution of this 

proceeding and involves the same controversy. Claimant contends that the 

court in the Denver Action has jurisdiction to dispose of all matters in 

controversy in this libel action. 

The procedure to forfeit property seized for violation of the revenue laws 

(made applicable to this action by 15 U.S.C. Section 905(b)) io a proceeding 

in rem. Rule 10 of the Admiralty Rules; Section 7323(a), I.R.C. Lilienthal's  

Tobacco v. United States, 97 U.S. 237, 261 (1877). 

Section 7323(a), AnpErn, specifically provides that the proceedings in rem 

are to be in the United States District Court for the district where the 

seizure is made. See, The Brio Ann, 13 U.S. 288, 290 (1815); Rush v. United  

States, 256 F.2d 862 (10th Cir. 1958); Clinton Foods v. United States, 188 

F.2d 289, 292 (4th Cir. 1951), cert. den. 342 U.S. 825. 

In proceedings in rem, venue is jurisdictional. Only the court having 

jurisdiction over the district oilers the seized property is located has juris= 

diction over the proceeding. No other court has jurisdiction. Lion Bondinc,  

Co_l.a2Lznvz...._aSEXar, 262 U.S. 77, 88-39 (1923); Ellezrzood v. Marietta Chair  

Company, 158 U.S. 105 (1895); Pettig Canning Company v. Steckler, 188 F. 2d 

715 (7th Cir. 1951), cert. don. 341 U.S. 951; United States v. 11 Cases, etc., 

94 F. Supp, 925 (D.C. Ore. 1950); United states v. 91 Packam, 93 F. Supp. 763 

(D.C.N.J, 1950). The prior filing of the action in Denver does not affect the 

jurisdiction of the District Court for the Northern District of Texas. It is 

conceded by the claimant that the weapons were seized in Dallas, Texas (Exceptions 

and Anm.er of C1a41,Ant, Par. 5) and it has saver been contended that the seized 

weapons were within the jurisdiction of the Denver court. Thus, the Denver 

court has never acquired jurisdiction over the ras and cannot adjudicate the 

- 2 - 



% 

forfeiture of the weapons. See Wabash Railroad v. Adelbert College 208 U.S. 38, 

54 (1908); pbarphy v. John Uofnan and Company, 211 U.S. 562, 569 (1909); and all 

cases cited above. The Denver court recognized its lack of jurisdiction over 

the property involved in the Action against the Attorney General in its Order 

granting the Attorney General's motion to stay further proceedings until the 

forfeiture proceedings in Dallas were finally concluded. 

It is apparent that the Dallas court has jurisdiction over this proceeding 

and that it is the only court which has or can have such jurisdiction. Accerd-

ingly, the Libel should not be dismissed. 

The initial seizures of the rifle and the revolver were by officers of 

the Dallas Police Department on Uovember 22, 1963. 

An initial "seizure" by local police officers is valid and such a seizure 

may be "adopted" by the Reven Service and the property proceeded against by 

forfeiture. In United States v. One Studebaker Seven Passenger Sedan 4 F.2d 

534 (9th Cir. 1925), the seizure was made by police officers of the city of 

Spokane, Washington, and it was contended that there could be no forfeiture 

unless the automobile was seized by the Commissioner, his agsistant, inspectors, 

or awe officer of the law, and that city police officers were not officers of 

the Law within the meaning of the seizure statutes. To this, the court stated, 

"The fact, therefore, that the original seizure was cede by police officers 

constituted no defense to the proceeding." Further, the court stated, "So 

that it is wholly immaterial in such a ease who makes the seizure or whether 

it is irregularly made or not, or whether the cause anaigned originally for 

the seizure be that for which the condemnation takes place, provided the 

adjudication is for a sufficient cause." See also Taylor, et al v. United  

States, 44 U.S. 221, from which the last quote in the above paragraph was 

originally taken. 

The United States may adopt seizures. In this regard the prinary authority 

appears to be United States v. One Ford Coupe, 272 U.S. 321, 322 (1926). See 

also aeanon v. United States, 199 F. 2d 34 (4th Cir, 1952), which dealt with 

the adoption of the aeizure originally made by state officers. 

The United States may sew property for its illegal use on a data prior 

to the act -Lure. In Uarman v. United States Were), the court stated: 

3 



"Forfeiture is asked not on account of what seas found 
.at the time of seizure but of what bad occurred prior 
thereto; and vehicles may be forfeited for violations 
Of law occurring prior to seizure as well as when they 
are seized flagrant° delicto." 

!Sanders v. United States, 201 F.2d 158 (5th Cir. 1953), is to the same effect. 

The seizures of the firearm by officers of the BItecutiVe Department of 

the Government by adoption of the seizures of the Dallas police officers was 

a step in the obtaining of jurisdiction by this court. In United States v. 

q73 Cases of Distilled Spirits and Wince., 74 F. Supp, 622, 631 (D. Minn. 1947), 

the court stated that the liquor was in the possession of the Federal Govern-

ment at the time the Libel was filed and that, therefore, the court obtained 

jurisdiction. 

Actually the claimant, John J. King, invoked the jurisdiction of this 

court by filing the claim and cost bond pursuant to 26 U.S.C. 7325. lie may 

not now attack the jurisdiction of the court but has, in effect, conceded 

such jurisdiction. 

(b) Validity of Judicial  Seizure by the United States tilimmtkad.IgT_Javg_ 
Itioniarli gLtstrk52212ao. 

The cip4imant appeara to contend that since the weapons are stored in the 

vault of the Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Dallas, 

Texae, the weapons have not been properly brought into the possession of the 

Marshal and the court as required by law so as to give the court jurisdiction 

to determine the action. In this regard, it is stated in the case of Averill 

v. Smith, 84 U.S 82, 94 (1872) that: 

"Imported goods wire° seized and subsequently attached 
by the marshal are sooetimes deposited with the 
collector for safe custody . . ." 

Constructive possession by the Marshal of a vehicle stored by the Revenue 

Service has been tacitly recognized in Comptroller General Opinion A-5619 

dated January 3, 1925, (4 Coop. Gen. 594). The Comptroller General assessed 

the payment of storage charges against the Marshal's fund and pertinently 

stated: 

"When the narcotic agent notified the marshal or the 
district attorney of the fact of seizure and the place 
of storage the duty and responsibility of seLtng that 
the vehicle was promptly disposed of was upon the Depart-
ment of Justice, and such duty and responsibility cannot 
be avoided by delay in assuming actual custody or control 
of the vehicle." 
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In this case the Marshal nada a proper return of service, stating that 

be seized the weapons and loft them stored in the vault of the Special Agent 

in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Dallas, Texas. This would appear 

to be a proper return of service and not open to challenge by this claimant. 

Mhrrav v. Bohol= Land and IaJerovenent Company, 59 U.S. 272, 28G (1855). 

In any event, this exception by the claimant is not well founded since it 

recta on the aasumptioa that jurisdiction of the court depends on a proper 

seizure by the United States Mbrshal. This is not the case. Jurisdiction in 

proceedings in ram attaches on the seizure of the property by the seizing 

officers, The Bria Ann, supra; property in possession of the seizing officers 

is in the custody of the court, The Joeefa Segunda, 23 II-S. 312 (1825), Thus 

the court obtained jurisdiction aver the meapoos no later than the time that 

the Libel wan filed. The action by the court in issuing a Warrant of Seizure 

and Monition to the United States marshal was in itself an eaercise of juris-

diction over the property, Accordingly, since the court has jurisdiction 

over the proceeding, the Libel should not be dismissed. 

(c) Validity of Government's 	act of the Bean  
Washington. 	. and Return to Dallas. Texas. 

The claimant asks for dismins-,1 of the Libel on the grounds that the 

Attorney General, without the claimant's approval, consent or knowledge, 

caused the respondent weapons to be transported from Washington, D. C., 

to Dallas, Texas, and that such transportation man wrongful and tortiouc 

and could not confer jurisdiction on the court. 

Claimant concedes that the weapons were seized and detained by police 

officers of the City of Dallas, Texas, and that the Department of Justice took 

custody of the weapons and receipted for the sane to the City of Dallas, 

Claimant' alleges that be purchased from Marina N, Oswald, individually and 

as communiay survivor of Lee Harvey Oswald, all of her right, title and interest 

in and to the meapona, and that he is now the sole owner thereof, Be further 

alleges that he has made several demands for delivery of the weapons and that 

such demands trete wholly refused ..  

It is clear that the weapons were legally in the custody of the Department 

of Justice, an agency of the United States. See United States v. One Ford Coupe, 

272 U.S. 321, 325 (1926). The claimant's demands assorted at most a claia 
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against property lawfully in the custody of and detained by the United States. 

If the property is subject to forfeiture as the Libel alleges, the claimant 

had no interest is the property and could have acquired none. See United,  

States v. Stovall, 133 U.S. 1 (1890), wherein it ti na bold that the forfeiture 

of property tales effect immediately upon the commission of the prohibited 

act and the right to the property vesta is the United States. When condemna-

tion of the property is obtained, it relates back and avoi4g all intermediate 

sales even to purchasers in good faith. 

The proper procedure for determining the rights to such property is by 

a proceedingin 1:13....ita either administrative or judicial, in the judicial district 

whore the property vas seized. The Brie Ann, supra; Eush v. United States, 

supra; In re Lorin 25 P. Supp. 549 (W.D. N.Y. 1930. Thus it is apparent 

that the Attorney General's action in causing the ueapons to be transported 

from Washington, D. C., to Dallas, Texas, vas taken for the purpose of returning 

the reapons to the only jurisdiction vbere the rights of all parties, including 

this claimant, could be adjudicated. The action of the Attorney General me 

not "wrongful and tortious," but vas lawful and appropriate under the circum-

stances. 

(d) Effect of Estoppel, Laches, or Abandonment on Validity of eovernuent'a  
Claim of Forfeiture. 

The respondent firearms were seized on November 22, 1963, and were at 

all tines thereafter answerable to officers of the Federal Gmernment. For-

feiture action against the firearms could have been commeeced at anytime after 

adoption of the seizure; hovever, such forfeiture action was not commenced 

until the publication of the first notice of seizure, oa August 18, 1965, as 

required by 26 U.S.C. 7325. It night be urged by the ola$mapt that the delay 

in instituting the forfeiture proceedings constituted abandonment of the 

Government's rights to the firearms, that the Government should be estopped 

from asserting title thereto because of the delay, and that the Government's 

action is barred by 'aches. 

Mere acquiescence, Inches, lapse of time, or nonactian on the part of 

the public or the public agents or officers does not ordinarily work an 

eatoppel. 31 C.J.S. Estoppel 132, p. 686. No estoppel arises from mere 

delay in bringing suit. City and County of San Francisco v. United States, 

223 F. 2d 737 (9th Cir. 1953), cert.' denied 350 U.S. 903. 
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The Supreme Court has had numerous occasions in the pant to consider 

the application of these doctrines to the United States as a party litigant. 

Follcwing is a chronological treatment of some of these cases with pertinent 

quotations: 

United Stateo v, Beebe, 127 U.S. 338, 344 (1388): 

"The principle that the United States is not booed 
by any statute of limitations,tor barred by any 
ladies of their officers, however gross, in a suit 
brought by them as a sovereign Government to enforce 
a public right, or to assert a public interest, is 
established past all controversy or doubt." 

.UtPos.4,ithercilzi.i.t itedStatesan 	 243 U.S. 339, 409 (1917): 

"As a general rule Inches or neglect of duty an the 
part of officers of the Government is no defense to 
a suit by it to enforce a public right or protect a 
public interest." 

Cbe a eke & Del. Canal Co. v. United States 250 U.S. 123, 125 (1919): 

"It is settled beyond controversy that the United 
States when asserting 'sovereign' or governrsintal 
rights is not subject to either state statutes of 
limitation or to laches." 

United States v, Summerlin, 310 U.S. 414, 416 (1940): 

"It is well settled that the United States is not 
bound by state statutes of linitationc or subject 
to the defense of laches is enforcing its rights. 
* * * The same rule applies whether the United 
States brings its suit in its own courts or in a 
state court." 

The Supreme Court, reviewing an alleged abandonment by the Federal Govern-

ment of lands under the ocean within the three mile limit off California, held 

in United States y. Califorpia, 332 U.S 19, 40 (1947), opinion supplemented 

332 U.S. 804, rehearing denied 332 U.S. 787, petition denied 334 U.S. 855: 

"The Government, which holds its interacts here as 
elsewhere in trust for all the people, is not to be 
deprived of those interests by the ordinary court 
rules designed particularly for private disputes 
over individually ouned pieces of property, and 
officers who have no authority at all to dispose 
of Government property cannot by their conduct 
cause the Government to lose its valuable rights 
by their acquiescence, laehes, or failure to act." 

In Nam Cooters Inc. v. Allied Uelicsmter Service ins, 277 11',2d 308, 

313 (9th Cir, 1960), it was argued that the Government had abandoned a crashed 

helicopter. The court held: 
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"The Aray's failure to seek to recover the remains for 
eighteen mouths does not constitute an abandcueent. 
Congress has the power to provide for the dispoeition 
of property of the United States * * * and the pour must 
be enercised by the authorized authority * * * and in the 
authorized manner* e le 	e leaLez:teelnact4vleelectuon 
the ,art of Geverneent officers is in ufeicient to cause 

(EmPhetsia added) 

In Weembereeer_eveeecerly, 103 F. 2d 175 (1st Cir. 1939), 

a trade-mark trade-esue case, it was held that abandonment requires an intent 

to abandon. Authority cited is Emilie Saxlehnor v. Eisner and Mendelson 

cam.....nv, 179 U.S. 19, 45 L.F.d. 60 (1900). 

23 U.S.C. 2462 establishes a five-year limitation period within which 

the Government must institute forfeiture proceedires. Providing the Govere 

ment does not allow the five-year stetute of limitations to run, the only 

thing a court can do is to order the seizing  officer to institute forfeiture 

proceedings or  to abandon the seizure. See In Re Eebrens, 39 F.2d 561 

(2nd Cir. 1930); gezesueeeeeeeeee, 15 U.S. le and Standard Carpet Cam,anv, 

Inc. • . Boers Celle.eter of Ieterzel Revenue, 234 Fed. 204 (U.S.DC. N.Y. 1922). 

It is not contended by claimant ie this case that the dim-yea: statute of 

limitations has run. It cannot be sericaoly assartec that the taovernment 1148 

unnecessarily delayed the filing of the Libel. For eeny menthe after the seizure 

of the weepocs in Dallas oe November 22, 1963, tbey were being used as essential 

exhibits in the investigation by the ?resident's Cerni3:4011 on the Assassination 

of President John F. eenredy, The forfeiture proceedings ware cemmenced after 

that investieatiou ems completed and after the Report of the Cemmission as 

submitted to ?resident Lyndon B. Johason an September 24, 1964 

II. teeS A FIREARM z1,-.= FOCFEITED TO T UelTED STATES Ve REASOU O. 
A EEC= NeePerie VICLATION RELATIM TO TUE Me: C7 TM FIREARM; 

The claimant centende in 11i5 E::ceptions and Ana-:;nr filed October 8, 1965, 

that the facts averred in the Libel are insufficient co constitute a cause of 

action and prays that the Libel be dismissed and that the eeapens be ordered 

delivered to .aim fortuwith. 

Section 9330), Title 13, U.S.C., provides, 	e,  area= or nr-nunition 

involved in any violation c the provtsicas of :his chops i or an.,  rules or 

promulGand the7:euzder shall ba suYect f::e seizure and eereeitere, 

and all provisions ce Title 25 relating to the 8OLZUVil, ferecieure, azd dioposi- 

Lion of fizeieees as ,A,?.firtf:!: in Section 2733 'ac 	a 5,3WJ) 	Title 26 

shall, so far an a7pliceble, e7:tand to seizures and ''cr4'sit,-.Ps incurred under 

the erceieeons of the.: eaapter. enapter le, se  t' 	901-;C9).' eeue, in 

ordee to et_ 	a cau2, r_Jf eiou :":„Yz 	::rrfciture r..17  the ritspdent firearms, 



the Libel must allege facts which show (1) a violation of the Federal Firearms 

Act (15 U.S.C. 901-909) or regulations thereunder, and (2) that the respondent 

firearm or firearms were involved 11 the violation. It is submitted that the 

Libel in this case properly alleges facts on which the court could find both 

that the Act had been violated and that the respondent firearms were involved 

in such violations. 

(a) Violation of the Federal Firearms Act, 

Section 903(d) provides "Licensed dealers shall maintain such permanent 

records of importatioa, shipment, and other disposal of firearms and ammunition 

as the Secretary of the Treasury shall prescribe." (June 30, 1938, ch. 850, 

g 3, 52 Stat. 1251.) Section 907 provides "rha Secretary of the Treasury may 

prescribe such rules and regulations as he deems necessary to carry out the 

provisions of this chapter." (June 30, 1938, ch. 850, g 7, 59 Stat. 1252.) 

Pursuant to the above authority, the Secretary has promulgated regulations 

requiring that the records of every licensed dealer should "show and include: 

* * (c) the disposition made of each firearm including the name and address 

of the person to whom sold and the date of disposition." 26 CFR Part 177, 

section 177.51. This regulation is clearly reasonable and necessary to 

effectuate the purposes of the Act which are to regulate the manufacture of 

and the shipment in interstate commerce of all firearms (S. Rept. No. 62, 75th 

Cong., 1st Sess.). Levis v. UnitedStates, 170 F.2d 43 (9th Cir. 1948). 

Section 905(a) provides in part "Any person violating any of the provisions 

of this chapter or any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, * * * shall, 

upon conviction thereof, be fined not more than $2,000 or imprisoned for not 

more than five years, or both." It is well established that Congress can pro-

vide that the violation of an administrative regulation is a criminal offense. 

McKinley v. United States, 249 U.S. 397 (1919); United States v. Grimaud, 220 

U.S. 506 (1911). 

Section 2 of Title 13 U.S.C. provides "(a) Whoever commits an offense 

against the United States or aids, abets, counsels, commands, induces or 

procures its commission, is punishable as a principal. "(b) Whoever will-

fully causes an act to be done which if directly performed by him or another 

would be an offense against the United States, is punishable as a principal." 

The purpose of this section is to remove the necessity for employing the 

language of aiding, abetting, procuring, etc. in the definition of every 
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federal crime and it has been held that subsection (b) is not restricted to the 

subject of parties reepensible for crimes, but enters into the very definition 

of the crime itself. Pereria v. United States., 202 F. 2d 330 (5th Cir. 1953) 

siff'd 347 U.S. 1 (1953). 

The dealero trio sold the respondent firearms were both licensed dealers 

ender the Federal Fireeims Act and, as such, were required to beep the records 

prescribed by section 177.51, 2=12. The requirement of this regulation that 

the dealer keep a record ehcoin,,  the name of the person to whom a firearm was 

sold obviously means the t7,1,7,3 name of the purchaser. See t... 4....121ni.ted 

Stateo 171 	76 (9th Crl, 1943), voirt. den. 336 U.S. 904, where the court 

ateted at p. 32: "-e 
	

caenot be said that the lee (as here) may require 

certain 1-leortant aed eertinnat information to La eztazad or a prasscribed form 

for the ace of a public official in aid of LTC; enforcement, but must tolerate 

such information then it Ls false." 

C1rr 	has amitsed Ear the purpose of this action and the Stipulation 

of Feet:, so chtwa, that Lea Harvey Oewald was the purchaser of these weapons 

and that the -.:ecord3 of the flealer showed is the purchase: of thesemapons the 

name of a pol=on other than Loo Zarvey Cs. ..mid. Thus, it is apparent that the 

records of the dealn=s were false in that the true name of elle purchaoar was 

not shown. Claimant also adreits for the purpoae of this action that the 

falsity of the records was caused by the use of a fictitious name by Lee Harvey 

Oswald in purcasing the teapcna frai the dealer. 

It is well established in Federal law that one wee procures, or causes 

another to commit an offense, is guilty as it princieel. Uneted Statee v. 47=iles, 

300 U.S 41 (1:,37); Cita,:a S...stes2.1.1221Q1a, 25 U.O. 4,'.;0 (1327); United 1“7:etes 

v. Uasser, :C1 7.2d 2/3 (7th Cir. 1962) cert. den. 310 U.S, 925; 1:eited St'1C2O 

	 , 292 '2.2d .2,74 Uth 	1961), cert. den. 31K U.S. 92C; Loneos v  

Ur-ited 	2t1C 	'd I 	:h C. 1:57), cert. dee. 333 1.1,S. (.;49; 	 v 

22:2 	2d T1.3 -:4th Cir. 1.936;; 2w..-chee 	United State3. 223 2.2d 

231 
	

17,-,4 td Zvatos, 173 :7.2d 1.n oth Cir. 19.49;; 

?ezeri- 	 Utrte.:, 

nnrc 	 ..i -1coczalon of tLic ,loctrete 	:et iorth in Unete: ScPtes  



The defendant need not be present at the time of the offense charged. 

Implicit also in the provisions of section 2 of Title 18, U.S.C., is the 

further fact that the defendant need not be the actual perpetrator of the 

Offense. ode  y. United States, 225 U.S. 347, 362 (1912); Moses v. United, 

States, 297 F.2d 621, 626 (8th Cir. 1961). 

The person or agent through whom the defendant acts can be innocent or 

also culpable of an offense hi self. Conviction of the principal actor is 

not a prerequisite to conviction of an eider and abettor or of the person who 

caused the unlawful act. Itredith v. United States, supra; Londos v. United  

States , supra. 

The defendant need not be within the cIsss of persons against wham the 

statute violated is directed. It is sufficient if he causes another person 

who is within the embit of the statute to violate it. For example, in United 

States v. Giles, supra, the defendant uas charged with making and causing to be 

made false entries in the ledger of the bank in which he was employed as a 

teller. He had withheld and secreted certain deposit slips so that, upon 

reaching the bookkeeper, the entry of the remaining deposit slips caused an 

understatement in the liability of the bank to the depositors of the secreted 

slips. However, at no time had the defendant himself made any false entries. 

The charge was laid under 12 U.S.C.A. i 592 which wakes criminal the makine of 

"any false entry in any book, report, or statenent" but does not make criminal 

the act of secreting the deposit slips zs ae. Nevertheless, the Court affirmed 

defendant's conviction indicating that: 

"It mous to us that defendant is as fully responsible 
for any false entries which necessarily result from the 
presentation of these pieces of paper (deposit slips) 
which be caused to be prepared as he would if he had 
given oral instructions in reference to them or had 
written then himself." 300 U.S. at page 49. 

In United States v. Incise, supra, the defendant was not a "representative of 

any employees" as that term was used in a statute making it an offense for such 

"representative" to receive or accept from the employer of such employees any 

money or other thing of value, Nevertheless his conviction was sustained oa 

the grounds that he caused the labor union, which was the "representative," 

to receive money in violation of the statute, Some other canes where the defen- 

dant was not the person against whom the statute violated was directed are: 



tgaLecUtatesTqssse, supra;  Lewis  v. United States, suvra; Meredith v.  

United States, supra; Boushea v. United States, supra; Foosbee v. United  

States, sumo;  ilalgimibagLedStel_4, 192 F.2d 47 (10th Cir. 1951). 

While ve are not aware of any case wherein the defendant was charged 

with causing a licensed dealer under the Federal Firearms Act to make a 

false entry in the records required by regulations to be kept by the dealer, 

a close analogy is presented by the facts in Walker v. United States, supra. 

There the defendant wns convicted of several violations of 18 U.S.C. 1001. 

One count charged that the defendant knowingly and willfully made a false 

representation when, in procuring a prescription for narcotics, she gave to 

the issuing doctor a false address, which be entered on the prescription. 

Another count charged her with knowingly and falsely making a false writing 

in giving a false address to a druggist at the time of obtaining an exempt 

preparation. The requirements for the recording of her name and address were 

contained in regulations (26 an sections 151.168 and 151.185 (1949 Rd.)). 

These regulations imposed the duty of properly preparing the required record 

on the practitioner (doctor) and the druggist, respectively, but imposed no 

requirement directly on the defendant. Nevertheless, her conviction on 

both counts was affirmed. Thus, there is an exact parallel to the instant 

case: A regulation under the Federal Firearms Act required the dealers to 

maintaia records allowing the name and address of the purchaser of a firearm. 

The purchaser gave the dealers a false name, thus causing the dealers to main= 

tam a false record. Under Walker, the person giving the false information 

(Lee Harvey Oswald) has violated the statute. 

(b) Forfeiture of the Weapons  

There are no reported cases of forfeitures for violations of the record 

keeping requirements of the Federal Firearms Act,1  There are, however, precedents 

under other statutes for the forfeiture of property involved in or related to 

violations of record keeping requirements. 

11 There are no reported cases of forfeiture for any violations of tbe Act. 
Rarely is the value of seized firearms sufficiently high to require 
judicial proceedings for forfeiture and few claimants have filed a claim 
and cost bond to transfer adminiatrative proceedings to the District Court, 
However, there is now pending in the District Court for the Western District 
of Teaas, Si Paso Division, a forfeiture proceeding entitled United States  
v. 3.256 Firearms. et al,  Civil NO. 2705, which i3 based in part on alleged 
violations of the sane record heeping provisions of the Act which are in 
issue in this case. 
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In Thacher's Distilled Spirits, 103 U.S. 679 (1880) (affirming United,  

States v. 102 Packages, Fed. Case No. 13,851 (C.A.N.Y. 1878)), the Court upheld 

the forfeiture of certain distilled spirits seized from an innocent third party. 

The rectifier who sold the spirits to the third party claimant had previously 

made a false entry in a return (the return was required by regulations) with 

respect to the seized spirits. The Court, at page 682, stated: "We are of 

the opinion that it was in regard to the whiskey nou seized that the false 

entry was made, and the forfeiture attached to it." 

In One /941 Buick v. United States,  158 F.2d 445 (10th Cir. 1946). the 

Court of Appeals agreed with the trial court that the failure of a retail liquor 

dealer to keep the records required by law was sufficient basis for the for-

feiture of a vehicle used to transport liquors to the retail premises. The 

dealer had paid the required occupational tax and his only violation of Federal 

law was the failure to keep the required records.
1 

Although, as noted above, there are no reported cases of forfeitures for 

Violation of the record keeping requirements of the Federal Firearms Act, we 

believe that it is clear beyond argument that the respondent weapons were 

"involved in" violations of regulation° promulgated under the Act. The respondent 

weapons were the very subject of the false entries which Lee Harvey Oswald caused 

the dealers to make. If these weapons had not been sold, there would have been 

no false entry and no violation of the Act. If these weapons had boon sold and 

the entry in the records shown the true name of the purchaser, there would have 

been no violation of the Act. Thus, it would appear that no precedent is 

necessary to show that the respondent weapons were so completely "involved in" 

the violation that their forfeitability is established beyond doubt. 

This conclusion is reinforced, if reinforcement is necessary, by the 

holding in Thadher's Distilled Spirits, supra,  and One 1949 Buick v. United  

States, 20;s4. 

1/ There are several forfeiture cases where the charge was the failure to 
pay tax as a dealer and the failure to keep records. See United States v.  
Windle, 158 F.2d 196 (8th Cir. 1946); Kent v. United States, 157 F.2d 1 
(5th Ciro 1946), cert. den. 329 U.S. 785; Seib v. United States, 150 F.2d 
673 (8th Cir. 1945); and United States v. 3 935 Cases of Distilled S iritn„ 
55 F. Supp. 84 (D.C. Ulna. 1944). Since none of these cases base the 
forfeiture squarely and solely oa the record keeping violation, they are 
of doubtful precedent value in this case. 
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III. LERE TEE USES OF TUB NAMES "A. HIDELL" AND "A. J. =ELL" BY 
LEE HARVEY OSWALD IN ORDERING TUE RESPOMENTD1FLE AND REVOLVER 
SUCH AS TO CONSTITUTE USE OF A FALSE AND FIcTizIOUS NAME? 

Lee Harvey Oswald used the name "A. Eiden" in ordering the respondent 

rifle from Rieinis Sporting Goods Company, Inc., Chicago, Illiaois, Lee Harvey 

Oswald also used the name "A. J. 'Udell" in ordering the respondent revolver 

from Seaport Traders, Inc., Los Angeles, California. There is nothing to 

indicate that prior to the ordering of these firearms Lee Hervey Oswald had 

ever used the Eiden. name. Contemporaneous with the ordering of these firearms, 

Lee Harvey Oswald resided at 214 Neely Street, Dallas, Teuas, where he was known 

as LOG Harvey Oswald and not as A. J. Hidell. Mrs. Marina Oowold had never 

heard of the Hidell name, or of its use by Lee Harvey Oswald, until after 

May 29, 1963, when Lee Harvey Oswald required Mts. Oswald to sign Fair Play 

for Cuba membership cards with the name of A. J. Hidell as the New Orleans 

Chapter president. Lee Harvey Oawnld apparently did use the name A. J. Hidell 

While in New Orleans during May to August 1963; however, Lee Harvey Oswald 

apparently attempted to set A. J. Hidell up as a person separate and apart 

from himself and he did not apply this name to himself. This is shown by 

the presence of both names on the Fair Play for Cuba membership cards, by the 

presence of both mama on the "Hands Off Cuba" handbills, by his statements to 

radio broadcaster William Mirk Stuckey of New Orleans Station UDSU, and by 

his arrest record in New Orleans on August 9, 1963. 

Although Lee Harvey Oswald did forge a smallpou vaccination certificate 

showing the physician as Dr. A. J. Eideel, this again was the name attributed 

to oome other person since the person vaccinated was Lee Harvey Oswald. The 

use of the nickname "Alum" by Lee Harvey Oswald While in Russia and in some 

correspondence with Mts. Marina Oswald could not have been associated with 

the name "Ilidell" since Mts. Marina Oswald did not know of the name 111ide11" 

until after tiny 29, 1963. 

If the name Hidell had been used tr,,,  Lee Harvey Oswald to such an eutent 

an to constitute another seine for him, it appears that he would have used this 

name instead of the name "0. H. Lee" in renting a room contemporaneous with 

the tilling in Dallas on November 22, 1963. Although Loa Harvey Oswald did 

have forged identification cards, showing his picture and the name "Alek James 

oa his person at the time of his arrest, he also had genuine cards 

showing his picture and the name Lee Harvey Oswald. No person has been found 

who knew Lea Harvey Oswald by the name "Well." 
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In pnited States v. Warszmuer„ 113 F.2d 100 (2d Cir. 1940), the defendant 

van convicted for having obtained and used a passport showing the name of 

Wiener. The conviction vas under Section 220 of Title 22, which is now Section 

1541 of Title 13, United States Code. The statute make° unlawful the willful 

and knowing use of a passport secured by reason of any false statement. The 

application for the passport had false stateneats concerning the name, the 

citizenship, the place of birth, and also a etatecent that the applicant had 

never resided outside the United States. The defendant had come to the United 

States from Russia, had used the name of Warszower at the time of his entry, 

and had claimed Easaian citizenship and birth. Ia the application for the 

passport he claimed to be Wiener of United States citizenship and birth and 

claimed to have never resided outside the United States. The defendant is 

shown to have used the n0100 of Wiener on prior occasions, particularly in 

1917 when he registered for the draft. There was in this case no particular 

discussion of uhether or not the showieg of the name of Wiener in the appli-

cation wets a false atateneat, but the legal point discussed was the use of 

admissions to convict the dafendrnt. It was ultimately held that the showing 

of the n4040 Wiener on the application of Warszower was a false statement even 

though the name of Wiener had been used by this defendant' on prior occasions, 

and although it was not shown that the name of Wiener was taken from some 

other person. The case does discuss the use of a forged birth certificate 

for Wiener. 

In Dear Wine lung v, United Staten,  312 F. 2d 73 (9th Cir. 1962), the 

defendant wan convicted under Section 1001 of Title 18, U.S.C., of making a 

false statement in a natter within the ismigration and naturalization juris-

diction. The false stntementa uere in the naturalization proceedings of the 

defendant's wife. The defendant stated that his true acne was Dear Kai Gay 

and claimed to be a citizen of the United States. The defendant's true name 

was Dear Wing Jung and he was not a citizen. The court stated that the false 

representation was material because the Government needs to know the true name 

and nationality of a person who offers 1i1 self as a witness in an applicant's 

behalf. The defendant in this case apparently had posed as Dear Xai Gay for 

a nuaber of years and had a wife and children in the United States. 
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In State v. Perris, 76 S. 608, at 609, 142 La. 198, there was a prose• 

cution under a statute making it unlawful to order liquors through the use of 

d name of another person. The court said that the Louisiana statute should 

be interpreted as making it unlawful to use a same other than his own for the 

purposes stated in the statute. The court also said that it was immaterial 

whether the name used was of a real or a fictitious person. 

In Howley v, United States, 171 P.2d 78 (9th Cir. 1948), there was a 

conviction for the showing of falls names and addresses on required records 

by a wholesale liquor dealer. The wholesale liquor dealer was required to 

oho; the name and address of the parson to whom liquors were sent out (Sec. 

2857, Internal Revenue Code of 1939). The court stated at page 82, "It 

cannot be said that the law may require certain important and pertinent 

information to be entered on a prescribed form for the use of a public official 

in aid of law enforcement, but mot tolerate such information when it is false." 

In Leith v. United States,  250 F. 2d 355 (5th Cir. 1957), a case arising 

in the Dallas Division of the Northern District of Tenaa, the defendant was 

prosecuted for failing to make an entry in records required of a wholesale dealer in 

liquors. As a part of proof of willfulness the Government witness testified con-

cerning numerous entries which were false. The court held that the proof of 

false entries in 109 other recorded dispositions in which purchasers were 

listed by fictitious no was relevant to establish intent, motive, design, 

purpose and practice as the effect of the two acts (failure to males entries or 

making false entries) is the same, i.e. to create an incorrect and unreliable 

record for the Government's use. 

In Tranacontinental Iesprance Camaany of New York v. MinniaR, 135 P. 2d 479 

(6th Cir. 1943), Albert Minning held title to realty and obtained fire insurance. 

Because of fear of a civil suit, Albert Miming and his wife, Lillian Panning 

(nee Schlarman), prepared and filed a deed purporting to convey this property 

to Mrs. E. Schlarman. Later, Lillian Miming prepared a deed purporting to 

transfer thin property from Mks. E. Schlarman to Era. E. plaairG. Still later, 

Lillian :!inning prepared a deed purporting to transfer this property from 

We. E. Miming to C. Zing. Then, approximately 13 years after the first 

spurious transfer Albert Minning prepared a deed purporting to transfer this 
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property from C. Ping to Albert Iclanning. There was a fire loss and the 

insurance company attempted to avoid coverage on the basis that there was 

no title in claimant. The insurance company claimed that nts. Lillian Nanning 

adopted the names E. Schlarman and E. Mtnning so as to mote, them her own. The 

insurance company then claimed that since the property was owned by Lillian 

Vanning prior to her attempted transfer to C. Xing, a fictitious person, 

and as the transfer to the fictitious person was void, the named insured did 

not have an insurable interest at the time of the lose. The court said there 

was no evidence that Hue. Ninning used those name or was known by them in 

the coomunity. The court further stated that something more than a limited 

WO is necessary to show that /kis. Lillian Meleing had adopted the names 

Mrs. E. Schlarman and Mrs. E. Vanning as her own. Ohio law provided that a 

deed to or from a person not in being, or a fictitious person, was void. The 

court concluded that the attempted transfers were void and title remained 

with Albert Nanning throughout this time. 

We meat conclude that Lee Harvey Oswald was not also known as A. J. IIidell 

and therefore bin use of the false and fictitious names of "A. Well" and 

"A. J. Eiden." in ordering the respondent rifle and revolver caused a failure 

on the part of the firearms dealers to maintain accurate records of the 

disposition of firearms. 

IV. COUCLUSION.  

Ue have shown that Lea Harvey Oswald caused two licensed firearms dealers 

to fail to keep accurate records of the disposition of firearms, as required by 

law. The respondent firearms mere the firearms concerning which the inaccurate 

records 1:731.11 kept and therefore were involved in the violations of the record 

keeping provisions of the Federal Firearms Act. Section 905(b) of Title 15, 

U.S.C., prescribes a forfeiture of firearms involved in any violation of this 

Act, and we submit that the firearme have become fotfeited to the United States. 
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9050) 9 
905(b) 1, 2, 
907 9 
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Using Fictitious or Assumed Names 

At common law it was generally held that a person could use 

any assumed name he chose in carrying out his normal business 

activities. This rule was grounded in the premise that names .ere 

intended primarily as a means of identifying the person. This rule 

prevails to a large extent today. 

There are, however, two exceptions to the rule. These are where 

a particular statute prohibits the use of an assumed or fictitious 

name, or where the use of the assumed or fictitious name is for the 

purpose of defrauding others. As stated in Kropp Forge Co. v. 

Employer's Liability Assurance Corp., 159 F. 2d 536 (C.A. 7, 1947): 

Without abandoning his real name a person may, in 
the absence of statutory prohibition, adopt any name, 
style, or signature, wholly different from his own name, 
by which he may transact business, execute contracts, 
issue negotiable paper, and sue or be sued, unless he 
does so in order to defraud- others through mistake of 
identity, it being the identity of the individual that 
is regarded, and not the name that he may bear or 
assume. 

See also Kreuter v. United States, 201 F. 2d 33 (C.A. 10, 1952) 

where the Court states: 

In the absence of a statutory prohibition, a person, 
without abandoning his real name, may adopt or assimP a 
name, and he may use such assumed name to identify himself 
in the transaction of his business, the execution of con-
tracts and the carrying on of his affairs. But he must 
not use it to defraud others through mistake of identity. 

See also 38 Am. Jur., Names § 11, pp. 600-601. I ■.ct  
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IN THE UNITED SrWl.TES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLORPDO 

Civil Action No. 9168 

JOIN J. KING, 	 ) 
) 

plaintiff,) 
) 

v. 	 ) 
	

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING  
) 

NICHOLAS deB. KATZENB?CH, 	) 
ttorney General of the 	) 

United States, 	 ) 
) 

Defendant.) 

Courtroom "D" 
U. S. Courthouse 
Denver, Colorado 
October 4, 1965 

 

Whereupon, the above-entitled cause came on for hear-

ing at the hour of 9:35 a.m. o'clock on the 4th day of October, 

1965, before the Honorable WILLIAM E. DOYLE, Judge, presiding. 

Appearances: 

For the plaintiff: James S. Holmberg, Attorney at 
Law, Denver, Colorado, and 
William C. Garrett, Attorney at 
Law, Dallas, Texas 

For the defendan',:, Lawrence M. Henry, United States 
P.ttorney for the District of 
Colorado, and Fred W. Drogula, 
Attorney for the Department of 
Justice, Washington, D. C. 
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? 7?. OCTZEDINGS 

2 1 
	 THE COURT: 72:-.0 next matter is Xing V. Katzenbach. 

3  IS co=sel reacf:-7? 

4 	 1-17=1:: a2z7.6v. 

5 
	 EOL,ABERC: If it please the Court, I'd like to 

6  present Mr. William C. Garrott, a member of the Bar of the 

7  !Sc Court of Texas, who is hare this morning to argue for 

8 the plaintiff. And I move that he be admitted for that pur- 

10 

Ithe hishest court of Texas, have you, Mr. Garrett? 

M. GARRETT: Yos, Your Honor. 

72::',1 well. So ordered. 

M. F77NRY: If it please Your Honor, I would, at 

15 this time, like to specially move the admission of Mr. Fred W. 

Drcgula, DROGUL, who has been admitted to the Supreme 

Court of the State of Xontucky, and of tie Court of Appeals of 

the District of Columbia, as well as the District Court of the 

19 District of Columbia. 

20 	 THE COURT: Very well. You will be admitted for the 

21 purposes of this case. 

22 	 The matter before the Court is the defendant's motion 

23 to dismiss, is this correct? 

24 	 MR. DROGULA: :hat's correct, Your Honor. 

25 
	 Mr-77n re,,•1-1.-1. You may proceed. 

THE COURT: Vert well. You have been admitted by 
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MR. DROCULA: Thank you. If it please the Court, the 

plaintiff in this action seeks to recover from the Attorney 

General of the United States the firearm, a rifle, which was 

used in the assassination of President John F. Kennedy, and a 

pistol which caused the death of Patrolman J. D. Tippit, 

T I double P I T, of the Dallas Police Department. 

These weapons were taken into custody in Dallas, 

TeNas, and were later surrendered to the possession of the 

President's Commission on the assassination of President 

Kennedy for use as evidence in its proceeding. 

THE COURT: '2his appears in the- these are allega-

tions of the pleadings? 

MR. DROGUL No, Your Honor. These are allegations 

of fact which I am stating. The pleading in this case recites 

that the plaintiff purchased from Mrs. Marina Oswald, the 

widow of Lee Harvey Oswald, all right, title, and interest to 

the rifle and pistol in question. He alleges that she acquired 

title---- 

THE COURT: Will you get we a yellow pad, please. 

(Request directed to law clerk) 

Go ahead. 

• MR. DROGUL1: He alleges that after acquiring this 

claim of ownership, he made demand upon Nicholas Katzenbach, 

the Attorney General of the United States, for possession of 

these firearms: that this demand has not been complied with 
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For relief he is asking this Court to enter an order 

directing the Attorney General to return these weapons to his 

custody. 

THE COURT: Tcell, how is the fact of the present 

custody, in its nature and character, brought to the attention 

of the Court? Do I have to take judicial notice of it; is 

there any proof? 

MR. DROGULA: :;:o, sir, the only--we have submitted 

as affidavits,' attached to our motion to dismiss, a copy of a 

bill which has been introduced into the Congress of the United 

States, and attached thereto is a House Report which the House 

Judiciary Committee attached to the bill when the House of 

Representatives passed it. 

This House eport contains information demonstrating 

the fact that these firearms were, indeed, the weapons used in 

the assassination of President Kennedy, and the death of 

Officer Tippit, and also explains the background of the re-

quested legislation. That is an attachment to Exhibit B. 

THE COURT: "raat you are really asking me to do, 

then, is to consider your motion to dismiss as a motion for 

summary judgment? 

MR. DROGUL: Well, not that, Your Honor. The 

act- - - - 

TEE COURT: it's a speaking motion to dismiss. In 

other words, the motien to dismiss usually just questions the 
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1 legal sufficiency of the allegations of the complaint, doesn't 
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MR. aROGULP.: Well, may 	say this, Your Honor. The 

material relating to the President's Commission, and the sub-

sequent legislation which has been introduced, is not directly 

relevant to the Government's motion today. I was making this 

statement of facts merely to supply the background for our 

argument. 

9 
	

The theory of our motion to dismiss is not based upon 

the presence in the Congress of H. R. 9545, but rather upon th 

existence in another court of a statutory forfeiture proceeding 

against the very firearms which are involved in this case. I 

was---- 

14 	 THE COURT: Elow is that brought to my attention? 

MR. DROGUL:I.: 	we have attached, as exhibits to 

our motion to dismiss, copies of the pleadings on file in the 

United States District Court for the Northern District of 

Texas. Also attached--that is attached as Exhibit E to our 

motion. Attached as Exhibit C are copies of certain claim 

papers, and certain related forfeiture papers filed by the 

Internal Revenue Service, which commenced the forfeiture pro-

ceeding. 

23 	 THE COURT: So, really, you are arguing that there 

is another action pending that has precedence over this? 

M.Z. DROGULA: That's correct, Your Honor. 
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THE COURT: 	right. I will hear you on that then. 

MR. DROGULA: Very well. As I mentioned, although I 

won't go into it in detail in view of the Court's comment, 

these weapons were ta]ezon into custody following the assassina-

tion, and surrendered to the President's Commission for use in 

its proceeding. 

When that Commission concluded its inquiry the wea-

pons were delivered into the custody of the Attorney General 

with the recommendation that it be preserved for historical 

purposes. But, subsequent to that date, on August 4th, 1965, 

to be exact, the Internal Revenue Service made a determination 

to institute administrative forfeiture proceedings against 

these firearms, and their appurtenances, upon the ground that 

they had been involve:: in a violation .of the Federal Firearms 

Act. 

Now, the first step under 26 U.S.C. Section 7325, in 

instituting an administrative forfeiture proceeding, is to have 

the weapons appraised bv three qualified appraisers. 

The statute, by its specific terms, states that if 

the appraisal by these appraisers is less than twenty-five 

hundred dollars then tae internal Revenue Service may proceed 

administratively against the firearms. On the other hand, if 

23  , the appraisal is more than twenty-five hundred dollars the 

24 United States Attorney must immediately commence a libel action 

against the firearms in the United States District Court where 25 



the weapons were seized. 

The appraisals in this case came to considerably 

less than twenty-five hundred dollars, so the Internal Revenue 

Service caused to be published in Dallas newspapers an advertis 

meat to the effect that these proceedings had been commenced. 

In addition, specific letters were addressed to the plaintiff, 

and his counsel in this case, notifying him that he had thirty 

days within which to file a claim to these firearms if he wishe 

to contest the condemnation proceedings. 

This claim was filed along with the bond in the 

amount of two hundred and fifty dollars to guarantee costs, 

and again, according to the express provisions of Section 7325 

of Title 26, the Internal Revenue Service transferred the 

entire matter to the United States Pttorney for the Northern 

District of Texas. 

I might mention that it was necessary to commence 

this forfeiture proceeding in the Northern District of Texas, 

because, again, a specific statute, Title 26 Section 7323(a), 

states that a forfeiture proceeding shall be an action in rem 

and shall be commenced in the United States District Court for 

the district in which the weapons were seized. 

In this case, of course, the weapons were seized in 

Dallas, Texas, so that it was necessary for the Government to 

commence the forfeiture proceeding in Dallas, Texas. 

Now, after receiving the plaintiff's claim in the 
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administrative forfeiture proceeding, the United States 

Attorney for the Northern District of Texas requested leave 

from Chief Judge Joe awing Estes, of that court, to commence a 

libel action against the weapons which are involved in this 

case. 

Chief Judge Estes signed an order granting leave to 

commence the libel action on September 10th, 1965. Also in 

that order, which is attached to our motion as Exhibit E, Judge 

Estes directed that a writ of attachment issue to the marshal 

to attach these goods pending further order of the court. 

Now, pursuant to this order, on September 10th, 1965, 

the Clerk for the Northern District of Texas, atthe direction 

of Judge Estes, issued a warrant of seizure. Now, this warrant 

of seizure, a certified copy of which we have just received, 

and which I have and I will hand up to the Court in just a 

moment, directs the United States Marshal for the Northern 

District of Texas to attach these firearms where they are pre-

sently located in Dallas, Texas, and to hold them pending com-

pletion of the libel action. 

Before I get too far ahead of myself, I would like to 

mention that the thrust of the forfeiture proceeding is as 

follows: 

rally, he 

Hidell. 

When Lee Earvev Oswald purchased the firearms origi-

did so under a fictitious name, the name of A. J. 

Regulations promulgated pursuant to the Federal 
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Firearms Tct, however, require that dealers in firearms must 

maintain accurate records showing the names and identities of 

purchasers of firearms and certain other information. The 

thrust of the Internal Revenue administrative proceeding, and 

the thrust of the libel action filed by the United States 

Tttorney, is that these weapons were therefore involved in a 

violation of the Federal Firearms Act, because the purchase 

caused a fictitious entry to be made in records under the 

Federal Firearms Act. I just mention this as information. 

This is the matter which is before Judge Estes in the Northern 

District of Texas. 

Wow, after receiving the warrant of seizure, which 

the Clerk issued on September 10th, 1965, the United States 

Marshal aid, in fact, attach and seize the weapons which are 

the subject matter of 	suit. 

In a return filed upon the warrant of seizure, the 

Marshal made this statement, "On September 10, 1965, I exe-

cuted this writ by seizing....", he then goes on to describe 

the weapons which are involved in this suit, "...by delivering 

a copy of this order granting leave to file libel and libel 

of information to 	Cordon Shan klin, Special Agent in Charge 

Federal Bureau of Investigation at his offices Room 200 Mercan-

tile Securities Building 1310 Commerce Street, Dallas, Texas, 

and leaving the above stored in his vault where seized, at 

5:00 p.m." 



  

10 

Now, if the Court will permit me, I would like to 

hand up a certified ccy of this warrant of seizure for the 

purposes of this argument. 

T:u:
r71 
 

Do You want that marked as an exhibit, or 

what? 

MR. DROGULA: Ecg pardon, ?our Honor. 

^^11-1..m 
	

hat. are you doing with it? What are 

the mechanics here of your bringing it to my attention;  are 

you introducing it in evidence, or attaching it to your motion? 

MR. DROGULA: I would like to consider it appended 

to our motion to dismiss, if the Court please. On Friday last 

we filed a supplemental memorandum in support of our motion. 

THE COURT: Well, we will permit it to be marked as 

an exhibit to the motion. We will give it the next letter, 

and---- 

MR. DROGULA: It will be Exhibit  F, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: E:''aibit F. And we will just let it 

stand until I have an opportunity to hear counsel, if he has an 

objection to it. 

MR. DROGULA: Very well, Your Honor. On this basis, 

the argument in support of our motion to dismiss goes in two 
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22 directions. First of all, we say that the Northern District 

23 of Texas now has jurisdiction, not only of the forfeiture pro- 

24 ceeding because by statute the forfeiture proceeding had to be 

25  brought in that district, but it now has actual custody  of the 



11 

firearms involved herein. 

THE COURT: Why did it have to be instituted there? 

MR. DROGULA: Ti"ell, a statute of Congress, Your 

Honor, 26 U.S.C. Section 7323(a) provides that forfeiture 

proceedings shall be considered actions in rem and shall be 

brought in the district in which the weapons were seized. 

Now, these weapons were seized following the assassina-

tion, and the death of Patrolman Tippit, in Dallas, Texas. So, 

it is that court. 

And there are several authorities in support of that 

proposition, Your Honor. Garth against the United States, 

cited in our supplemental memorandum, 132 Federal Supplement 

694, where the court squarely stated that the forfeiture pro-

ceedings are to be commenced where the weapons are seized, pur-

suant to this provision in 26 U.S.C. 

So that our arcument is that since these weapons are 

in the custody of the Northern District of Texas, if the for-

feiture proceeding is successful, these weapons will be con-

demned to the Government. t nd, obviously, the plaintiff in 

this action, wherein he seeks possession, cannot recover. On 

the other hand, on 23 U.S.C. Section--excuse me for a moment-- 

2465, provides that if the claimant, Mr. King, is successful 

in the forfeiture proceeding in Dallas, Texas, the court will 

direct the weapons to be returned to him forthwith. 

Now, Mr. Xins, as .2". understand it, according to the 
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procedure, has until next :;ionday, October llth, in which to 

file a motion to intervene in the libel action in Dallas. If 

he does so, he will have an opportunity to present all claims 

of ownership and mal:e any argument which he could make in this 

court. If he is successful in defeating the forfeiture pro-

ceedings, he will recover the weapons. If he is not successful 

they will be forfeited to the Government. 

But, we take the position that under the statute that 

the forfeiture proceeding is the exclusive remedy provided by 

Congress. 

An examination of the forfeiture provisions, and the 

cases decided under them, would demonstrate that the courts 

have construed the forfeiture statute as being an exclusive 

remedy, and that a plaintiff may not file an independent action 

for the return of property if a forfeiture proceeding, libel 

action, is pending. The courts have said that all of his rights 

are protected in the libel action. That court has jurisdiction 

by act of Congress. It has jurisdiction by writ of attachment 

over the property. He may file a motion to intervene, make his 

claims of ownership, and that once this is commenced the juris-

diction is withdrawn from all other courts. 

In our supplemental memorandum we cite the case of 

Wabash Railroad against Ik.delb=rt College, 208 U. S. 38 at page 

54. This language appears to be particularly appropriate here. 

This is on page 2 of our supplemental memo. 
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"When a court of competent jurisdiction has, by 

appropriate proceedings, taken property into its possession 

through its officers, the property is thereby withdrawn from 

the jurisdiction of all other courts. 

"The latter courts, though of concurrent jurisdiction ,  

are without power to render any judgment which invades or dis-

turbs the possession of the property while it is in the custody 

of the court which has seized it." 

Now, we say that the court which has seized it is the 

Northern District of Texas, and that according to the_ exclusive 

remedy which Congress has provided, it is the court which must 

determine the issues involved here. 

Now, the other applicable provision which we consider 

to be diapositive on this point is 28 U.S.C. Section 2463, 

which is quoted on the first page of our supplemental memorandum. 

Now, this statute provision "All property taken or 

detained under any revenue law of the United States shall not 

be repleviable, but shall be deemed to be in the custody of the 

law and subject only to the orders and decrees of the courts of 

the united States having jurisdiction thereof." And the Gerth 

case cited at the bottom of page 1 squarely holds that the 

phrase "courts of_ the United States having jurisdiction thereof 

means the courts in which the forfeiture proceeding is pending; 

courts which have jurisdiction over the res. So that that sec-

tion squarely holds that they are not repleviable. 
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Now, T think, generally, plaintiff's complaint in 

this case can be construed as an attempt to replevy these fire-

arms from the custody of tae Attorney General. But, of course, 

as the warrant of seizure now shows, they are in the custody of 

the Northern District of Texas, which court, by Congress, has 

been designated as the district in which these issues should 

be resolved. 

Now, the authorities cited in our original memorandum 

commencing at page 5, all hold that the forfeiture proceeding 

which Congress has s.,:)ecified must be deemed exclusive, and that 

a plaintiff has no independent right to maintain an action for 

the return of property because he has an adequate remedy under 

the administrative procedure supplied by Congress. 

In United states against One 1955 Oldsmobile Sedan, 

which is a Western District of Pennsylvania decision in 1960, 

cited at 135 (sic) Fed. Supp. 903, the owner of an automobile 

which had been seized by internal Revenue filed, as the plain-

tiff has done here, an action for its return. A forfeiture 

proceeding had been commenced, but the plaintiff did not parti-

cipate. Just as the forfeiture proceeding is now in the 

Northern District of Texas. And the court granted-- 

THE COURT: Did you tell me that the plaintiff in 

this case has made a claim in the forfeiture proceeding? 

MR. DROCUL:l.z Ires, 'our -Ionor, under the regulations, 

and under the statute, whenever Internal Revenue files an 
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administrative forfeiture proceeding any claimant has thirty 

days in which to come in and file a claim. On September 3rd, 

1(365, this plaintiff filed an elaborate claim with internal 

Revenue setting forth his basis of his claim of ownership, 

setting forth the sotrce of his title, and challenging the 

validity of the forfeiture. 

This filing of the claim made it necessary for 

Internal Revenue to transmit the entire proceedings to the 

United States Attorney for the Northern District of Texas for 

the commencement of a libel action, wherein this plaintiff may 

have all his rights determined in a court of law. 

TEM COURT: What relief does he demand in this 

claim? 

MR. DROGUL.A.: Well, in this claim, Your Honor, he---- 

THE COURT: Delivery of the weapons? 

MR. DROGUL.a: Yes, Your Honor. Well, in this--he 

claims to be the owner, and he challenges the legal basis upon 

which the forfeiture is premised, and he--and in there he also 

denies, I believe, the jurisdiction of that court-- 

THE COURT: Oh. 

MR. DROCULA: --because he--well, he makes the 

allegation---- 

• THZ COURT: He doesn't request, then, affirmative 

relief from the U. S. courts? 

MR. DROGUI1,: It's my understanding that he does not, 
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1 Your Honor. It was not necessary for him to do so at that 

2 stage. 

3 
	 Now, at the ne:;:t step in the proceeding, which is the 

4 filing of a motion to intervene in the libel action in the 

5 district court, at that time he must make an affirmative claim 

6 setting up his ownership, challenging the forfeiture, and 

demanding the property. As I say, this motion to intervene, 

as I understand the procedures, must be filed by next Monday. 

Now, the basis for this, however, and the fairness of 

it all, is set out in a decision of the Ninth Circuit, Thomp-

son-- 

THE COURT: Is this in your brief? 

MR. DROGUL.A: Yes, sir. This is on page 7 of our 

original memorandum. Now, this case was decided under the 

predecessor statute, which is the same procedure as obtains 

today, but it involves a different amount. 

There the plaintiff had filed a claim for the return 

of property and the court dismissed it, saying, "You have a 

perfectly adequate remedy. You can participate in the for-

feiture proceedings. 2\nd if you win you will get your property 

21 	 And the quotation on that page, the court said-- 

22 points out that he may file a claim and a bond, and when this 

23 is done, starting the second sentence in the first paragraph 

24  of the quotation, "The authority of the collector is at an end, 

25  and the whole matter is automatically transferred to a court oil 
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law, where all the parties in interest are given their day in 

court and a full opportunity to be heard. 

"This remedy would seem to be full, complete, and 

adequate. True, the claimant is not given a right of action 

in his own name; but this in no wise detracts from the adequacy 

of the legal remedy. He is given the right to compel the 

Government to institute proceedings in which his rights may be 

fully heard and determined, and it is entirely immaterial 

whether he appears in court as a plaintiff in an action of law, 

or as a claimant in a proceeding at law to declare a forfeiture 

"The very object of the statute would seem to be.to 

give parties claiming the seized property a right to have their 

claims determined in a court of law, instead of compelling them 

to resort to some other proceeding, or to invoke some other 

remedy." 

Now, the plaintiff, in the brief opportunity I had 

to examine their memorandum filed this morning, seems to 

suggest that after the claim has been filed, at that point any 

court--any court--can entertain the proceeding transferred 

from the collector in the Thompson-Schwaebe case. However, 

this is plainly not correct, because as I mentioned, the 

statute requires that the district court which entertains the 

action is the district court for the district in which the 

weapons were seized. This is specified by statute. 

So that under the procedure outlined in the Schwaebe 
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case, this plaintiff has filed a claim. and has thus terminated 

all proceedings before Internal Revenue, and he now has an 

opportunity to interve= in the court proceedings wherein, 

under the Schwaebe case, all of his rights can be heard and 

determined. 

The other authorities which we have also cited in 

here, as I mentioned, in the United States versus One 1955 

Oldsmobile Sedan, the court granted the Government's motion to 

dismiss for lack of jurisdiction, and it said so with respect 

to the very section we are relying on here today. And the 

quotation on page 5 of our original memorandum, the court said, 

"Section 7325, Title 25 U.S.C.A., provided movant with an 

adequate remedy at law to contest the legality of the seizure 

and forfeiture of his automobile." 

And at the end of that quotation, the court said, 

"Also it seems eminently clear that the court in the matter 

under consideration does have jurisdiction to order the return 

of the automobile to the movant." 

So, again, our argument in support of our motion to 

dismiss takes two roads. First, we say that this very detaile• 

procedure, which Congress has created, is an exclusive remedy. 

And under these cases it is the remedy which plaintiff must 

pursue. Secondly, we say that the Northern District of Texas 

has taken custody and control, and that they are entitled to 

retain custody and control until the forfeiture proceeding is 
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